
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Organizational Meeting 
January 9, 2018 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Election of President, Vice President and Secretary 
 

3. Conflicts of Interest 
 

4. Adjournment 























ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Board of Finance Annual Meeting 
January 9, 2018 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Adoption of Resolution 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Finance does hereby authorize the 
Treasurer of the Elkhart Community Schools to invest funds from the 
depository balance instead of from a specific fund balance in 

accordance with the provisions established by Indiana Code 5-13-9-6. 
 

3. Review 2017 Investment History 
 

4. Adjournment 





- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 9, 2018 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jan  9 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan  9 7:00 p.m. Organizational Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan  9 
Immediately 

following 
Finance Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan  9 
Immediately 

following. 
Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 16 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 23 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 23 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 13 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 13 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Memorial High School 
Central High School 

 

E. MINUTES 

December 19, 2017 – Business Board Meeting 
 

F. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Resolution of Board of School Trustees 

 
 Resolution for Transfer of Funds – The Business Office recommends Board 

approval of a resolution authorizing the transfer of funds during the 

calendar year 2018. 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 
 



BOARD AGENDA January 9, 2018 
 
 

2 
   

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 2018–2019 School Calendar – The administration presents the 2018-2019 
School Calendar for initial consideration. 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Memorandum of Understanding – The administration recommends Board 

confirmation of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Elkhart and Elkhart Community Schools regarding School Resource Officers 
and School Crossing Guards. 

 
 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of 

overnight trip requests. 

 
I. PERSONNEL 

 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

December 19, 2017 

 
J.C. Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 8:00 

a.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 

  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

   

Absent: Karen S. Carter  

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Board Secretary Doug Weaver recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
December 12, 2017 – Public Work Session 

December 12, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$2,591,184.10 as shown on the December 19, 2017, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1718-74) 
 

Payment of 

Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $500 from the 
National Flag Football to Pierre Moran Middle School for the use of the 

football field to be used for athletic equipment and supplies; 80 
pumpkins from Bullard’s Farm Market to Woodland Elementary for the 
farm to school project (valued at $400); $500 from Cressy & Everett 

Realtors to Memorial High School’s girls/boys track program; two 
Christmas trees, a grill, and various tools for the second year 
automotive technology class (valued at $2,900) to the Elkhart Area 

Career Center (EACC) from Zeno Ladas, a retired automotive technology 
teacher; the student services department received clothing donations for 
distribution to students in need from the First Congregational Church – 

220 hand knitted scarves, from United Way – 500 hand knitted hats and 
over 475 coats, and 20 hats made by Jane Slabaugh; and $250,000 
from Scott Welch for the purchase of a drop down scoreboard for North 

Side Gym. 
 

Gift Acceptance 



2 
 

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – 
November 30, 2017, and found it to be in order. 

 

Financial 
Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the bid award 
recommendation for the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for 

calendar year 2018 to Ceres Solutions (formerly known as North Central 
Co-op) at a fixed cost of $1.9766 for unleaded and $2.07 for diesel.  A 
corrected bid tab was provided prior to Board action.  (Codified File 

1718-75) 
 

Fuel Bids 

At this point in the meeting, Board member Carolyn Morris arrived. 

 

Morris Arrived 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the bid award 
recommendation for refuse removal services for a three year period, 

2018-2020 to HIMCO Waste Away Service at $7,143.69 as the lowest 
and best, most responsive bidder.  (Codified File 1718-76) 
 

Refuse Bids 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted the 2017 Rainy Day Fund 
transfer resolution.  In response to Board inquiry, a 5-year summary of 
transactions in the Rainy Day Fund will be provided.  (Codified File 

1718-77). 
 

2017 Rainy 
Day Fund 
Resolution 

 

Kevin Scott provided the current insurance report including medical plan 
experience costs noting the year to date costs are slightly better than 
the previous year. 

 

Insurance 
Update 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1718-78) 
 

Fundraisers 

The administration requested the 2018-2019 school calendar be 
removed from the agenda to allow for continued internal review.   
 

2018-2019 
School 
Calendar 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of a grant to 
the Wal-mart Foundation from West Side for $1,000 for girls basketball 

supplies, equipment and activities.  Dr. McGrath, deputy superintendent, 
also announced the School Improvement Grant for Roosevelt has been 
preliminarily awarded. (Codified File 1718-79) 

 

Grant 
Approvals 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the December 19, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1718-
80) 

 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

An agreement regarding retirement eligibility requirements for a 

certified staff member. (Codified Files 1718-81) 

Consent 
Agreement 



3 
 

Employment of certified staff member, Kimberly Meyer, music at 
Beardsley for the 2017-2018 school year. 

 

Certified 
Employment 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members, 
effective on the dates indicated: 

Elyssa Kovatch - special education at West Side, 12/21/17 
Teresa Kuruda - grade 6 at Roosevelt, 12/21/17 
 

Certified 
Resignation 

 

Employment of the following three (3) classified employees who 
have successfully completed their probationary period on dates 
indicated: 

Robin Creer - bus driver at Transportation, 12/11/17 
Kelly Martin Del Campo - food service at Commissary, 12/8/17 
Amber Smith - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 12/12/17 
 

Classified 
Employment 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees effective 

on the dates indicated: 
Heather Holycross - food service at Cleveland/Woodland,  
   12/29/17 

Carol Nusbaum - paraprofessional at Riverview, 12/22/17 
 

Classified 

Resignation 
 

Maternity leave for classified employee, Nakia Williams, food 

service at Memorial, beginning 11/29/17 and ending 1/5/18. 
 

Maternity 

Leave 
 

By a 5-1 vote (Daiber, yea; Weaver, nay; Dale, yea; Duncan, yea; 

Morris, yea; and Stahr, yea) the Board tabled the motion to adopt a 
resolution related to the satisfaction of performance goals for 
superintendent Haworth for the 2016-2017 school year and the 

establishment of performance goals for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 

From the 

Superintendent 

Mrs. Daiber read the following message from Board member Karen 
Carter:  “As of the end of November, there is a negative balance of over 
$2 million and we may end the year with a significant negative balance.  

If the problem is late disbursement by the state, we need to call state 
officials and/or our legislators and ask for the reason.  If our staff is not 
submitting information in a timely manner, we need to fix it.  If federal 

funding for free lunches has been reduced, we need to know before we 
spend the money, not afterward.  Our current plan to return to solvency 
does not seem to be working.  In response to Mrs. Carter’s inquiries, 

Tony Gianesi, chief operation officer, and Kevin Scott responded by 
stating Mrs. Carter was provided the food service update discussed at 
the December 12th meeting; the explanation provided by the State in 

response to the date of the November payment being sent on December 
1, 2017; and the ongoing efforts to reduce the balance.  It was 
projected the elimination of the balance should be within the next 19 

months.  Mr. Gianesi also reported 4 major kitchen upgrades have been 
expensed to the food service budget at a cost of $300,000 each.  Board 
member Glenn Duncan, requested the Board receive monthly updates of 

the food service balance. 
 

From the Board 



4 
 

Mr. Duncan also requested a 5-year history of other funds that tend to 
run negative balances i.e., WVPE and book rental. 

 

From the Board 

The Board and administration discussed the on-going situation regarding 
crossing guards and discussions with representatives of the City of 

Elkhart. 
 

From the Board 

Board member, Jeri Stahr, reported on the community information 

meetings held on Monday, December 11th.  The morning session was for 
non-profits and faith-based agencies, and the afternoon session was 
presented to local realtors.  Presentations were given on the culture 

series, work ethic certification and PRIDE, capstone projects, enrollment 
strategies, elementary activities and communication. 
 

From the Board 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:25 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 

  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Resolution of the Board of School Trustees of 
Elkhart Community Schools 

 
 
Be it resolved that the following items are hereby approved by the Board of School Trustees of 
Elkhart Community Schools: 
 

1) The Treasurer of Elkhart Community Schools (ECS), IC 20-26-4(c), shall be Kevin 
Scott, effective appointment date to appointment date. 
 

2) The Deputy Treasurer of Elkhart Community Schools, IC 20-26-4(c), shall be Erica 
Purvis, effective appointment date to appointment date. 

 

3) The copy fee for records obtained through the Secretary to the Board of School 
Trustees of Elkhart Community Schools for the year of 2018 shall be ten (10) cents 
per page. 

 

4) The officers and members of the Board of Finance shall be the same as the officers 
and members of the Board of School Trustees with the ability for an alternate 

member to be named. 
 

5) The Board of School Trustees compensation for 2018 shall not exceed: $2,000.00 

per year IC 20-26-4-7 (1); and a per diem rate of $50.00 for other meetings per 
NEOLA 0144.1. 

 

6) The Cash Management Provider for 2018 shall be Lake City Bank. 
 

7) The ECS School Board shall appoint Barnes & Thornburg as Legal Counsel. 

 

8) The Elkhart Truth and Goshen News shall be designated for 2018 for the 
advertisement of legal Notices to the public. 

 

9) Mileage rate reimbursement shall be the IRS rate effective January 1, 2018 of $.545 
per mile. 

 

10) The Board approves the Bond amounts as follows: 
Corporation Treasurer   $200,000 
Deputy Treasurer      $25,000 

4 High School ECA Treasurers    $20,000 
5 High/Middle School Café Managers   $10,000 
5 other Treasurers      $10,000 

45 other ECA Treasurers       $5,000 
 
 

 



 
ADOPTED:  January 9, 2018 

 
 
 
________________________________ 

Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 

________________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 

 
________________________________ 

Jeri E. Stahr Secretary 
 

 
 
________________________________ 

Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 

________________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 

 
________________________________ 

Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

________________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



 RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE FUND LOANS FOR 2018 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary from time to time to borrow money to enhance the 

General, Transportation, Bus Replacement, Debt Service, Capital Projects; and, 

 WHEREAS, there is from time to time, on deposit to the credit of the General, 

Transportation, Bus Replacement, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds of the Elkhart 

Community Schools sufficient balances available for temporary advancement and transfer; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Treasurer of the Elkhart 

Community Schools is authorized to effect transfers to depleted funds for a period not to 

extend beyond the 2018 Budget Year; 

 RESOLVED, FURTHER, that any funds so advanced and transferred shall become 

a report of public record at the next regular meeting of the Board of School Trustees. 

 

       ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

        Board of School Trustees 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

         President 

 

  

       ________________________________ 

         Secretary 

 

DATED THIS 9TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2018 
Resolutiontrf 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  December 19, 2017 
 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 
 

FROM: Tessa Sutton, Supervisor of Connective Leadership & Inclusion 
 

RE:  Donation Approval 
 

We are in receipt of a cash donation in the amount of $4,625.00 from the Community 
Foundation of Elkhart County.  The funds will be used to engage staff, students, and 
community in cultural experiences that expand the value of diversity and inclusion in 
schools, community, and among all employees. 
 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and 
that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 

 Community Foundation of Elkhart County 

Amanda Jamison 

 101 South Main Street 
Elkhart, IN 46516 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 To:  Board of School Trustees 

  

 From: Dr. Rob Haworth 

 

 Date: January 4, 2018 

 

Subject:  Gift Acceptance 

  

The following donations were made to Elkhart Community Schools in 2017 for 

renovations to Rice Field and North Side Gym: 
 

$100,000.00  Anonymous 
 
$  25,000.00  Mr. and Mrs. Thad Naquin 

   22934 Greenleaf Blvd 
   Elkhart IN  46514 

 
$  25,000.00  The Welter Foundation 
   21027 Riverbrook Ln 

   Bristol IN  46507 
 

 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept these 
donations and appropriate letters of acknowledgement and appreciation be sent. 

 
  

  

 
      

 

   
 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  January 2, 2018 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Food Service / Pam Melcher 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

Evelyn and Brad Williams have donated $100.00 to pay student negative balances at Cleveland 

Elementary School. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

 Evelyn and Brad Williams 

 15292 Mary Wade Drive 

 Bristol, IN 46507 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  January 2, 2018 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Food Service / Pam Melcher 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

Veterans of Foreign Wars has donated $675.00 to pay student negative balances at Beardsley, Mary 

Beck and Osolo. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

 WADE E. HARRIS POST 88 VETERNS OF FOREIGN WARS 

 1519 Bristol St. 

 Elkhart, IN 46514 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  January 2, 2018 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Food Service / Pam Melcher 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

VFW Ladies Auxiliary has donated $675.00 to pay student negative balances at Beardsley, Mary Beck 

and Osolo Elementary Schools. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

 VFW POST 88 AUXILIARY 

 1519 Bristol ST. 

 Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DATE:  December 21, 2017 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $2,000.00 for 
the girls/boys track team.  This donation will go towards the purchase of team 
sweats, team shirts, shoes, equipment, and other miscellaneous costs associated 
with this program. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this 
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is 
sent to: 
 
Mr. Dana Homo 
20399 S.R. 120 
Bristol, IN   46507 

























 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  January 9, 2018 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2017-18 school year: 

 

Allison Pennington  Roosevelt/Grade 1 

 

Jamie Schultz   North Side/Special Education 

 

Katie Smith   Elkhart Academy/Science 

 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Alexa Dolbee   Hawthorne/Grade 5 

Began: 8/15/17   Resign:  1/12/18 

 

Lorinda Kline   Pierre Moran/ Instructional Coach 

Began:  8/8/17   Resign :  12/21/17 

 

Romison Saint-Louis  Roosevelt/Physical Education 

Began:  7/6/15   Resign:  12/21/17 

 

Ryan Strozier   Memorial/Science 

Began:  8/2/16   Resign:  11/1/17 

 

Robert Weber   Beck/ENL 

Began:  1/4/15   Resign:  12/21/17 

 

 

d. Change to Maternity Leave – We recommend changing the maternity leave for the following 

employee: 

 

Hannah Hueni   Hawthorne/Kindergarten 

Began:  1/8/18   End:  6/6/18 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee:   

James Kintigh   ESC/Tech Services 

Began: 5/1/06   Retire: 6/15/18 

     Years of Service: 12  

  

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

Tracy Calhoun   Daly/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/28/99  Resign: 1/5/18 

 

Janine DeShone  Memorial/Secretary 

Began: 8/5/13    Resign: 12/21/17 

 

Danielle Feliciano  Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began:  1/13/16   Resign: 1/5/18 

 

Kelly Martin Del Campo Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 10/13/17  Resign: 12/21/17 

 

Idelis Monge Roman  Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/04/16   Resign: 12/21/17 

 

Amanda Rospopo  Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/14/15  Resign: 12/21/17 

 

Brittney Saint-Louis  Beardsley/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/4/2015  Resign: 12/21/17 

 

   

 

c. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following employees: 

 

 

Jalethia Black   Monger~Tipton/ Food Service 

Began: 10/24/17  PE: 12/20/17 

 

Joyce Cardosa   Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 10/31/17  PE: 1/9/18 

 

Cassandra Collins  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 10/23/17  PE: 12/18/17 

 

  Karen Krieg   Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

  Began: 10/23/17  PE: 12/18/17 

 

  Dinorah Kuehn  Pinewood/Paraprofessional 

  Began: 10/24/17  PE: 12/19/17 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

  Heather Macioce  Transportation/Bus Driver 

  Began: 10/19/17  PE: 12/14/17 

 

  Kayla Magyar   Transportation/Bus Driver 

  Began: 10/17/17  PE: 12/12/17 

 

  Sabrina Martin  North Side/ Food Service 

  Began: 10/31/17  PE: 1/9/18 

 

  Amanda Schenk  Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

  Began: 10/31/17  PE: 1/9/18 

 

 

 


	Agenda - Organizational Meeting 2018
	Conflicts of Interest
	Agenda- Board of Finance 2018
	2017 Investment History
	Agenda - January 9, 2018
	Minutes - Business Meeting December 19 2017
	Resolution of the School Board of Trustees
	Resolution To Authorize Fund Loans
	Gift Acceptance - Bristol
	Gift Acceptance - ECS 2
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Facilities
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - Food Service
	Evelyn and Brad Williams.pdf
	VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS gift acceptance.docx
	VFW Post 88 Auxiliary gift acceptance.docx

	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	2018-19 Calendar DRAFT
	MOU School Resource Officers and Crossing Guards
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Personnel Report

